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DOWNTOWN STREETS: COMMERCE STREET 

(ST. MARY’S STREET TO SANTA ROSA) 

 (RFCSP: TCI092418RR) 

 

 

AMENDMENT #4 
November 1, 2018 

 

 

Amendment # 4 comprises of a clarification to the RFCSP and an answer to a written question.   

 

1. Can the engineer’s estimate be broken out by owner? (CPS, SAWS, COSA, TxDOT) 

Response: Unit Pricing Form is broken out by owner; CoSA 

(Roadway/Streetscape/Landscape/Drainage/Illumination), SAWS (Water/Wasterwater), and CPS Energy 

(Gas). 

 

2. Who is responsible for material testing? 

Response: The City of San Antonio will retain independent testing services for Quality Assurance only.  The 

Contractor is responsible for implementing a Quality Control program to monitor the quality of the material 

and work. 

 

3. Is a project schedule available? 

Response: An updated Project Schedule will be provided. 

 

4. Is a geotechnical report available? 

Response: Geotech Report is available upon request. 

 

5. Can the CAD file(s) be provided? 

Response: CAD files can be provided to the selected Bidder. 

 

6. Please provide the PG in reference to the asphalt binder and asphalt aggregate. 

Response: PG has been provided on Amendment #2. 

 

7. In reference to General Note 15, what are the limits for negotiation regarding time extensions? The 

concern is that the contractor will not be reasonably compensated for time lost due to the clause “if more than 

three (3) days are required for investigation (not including holiday and weekends) and if the contractor is 

unable to work in other areas, then the contractor will be allowed to negotiate for additional construction 

time…”. Is this clause specific for a continuous three days or will compensation also be allowed for a series of 

events where the contractor experiences numerous delays of 3 days or less? 

Response: Numerous archeological related delays of 3 days or less on a single task may be compensated for 

lost time 

I. QUESTIONS AND CLARIFICATION TO RFCSP 
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8. According to Note 5 on Sheet 22, it states that the contractor must salvage, stockpile, and reuse all 

concrete pavers within the trench limit. Following, the CPS trench detail shown on page 11, of the CPS plans 

shows to backfill the trench with 5” of ATB. Is it the intent to replace all concrete pavers within the CPS trench 

section or to backfill with the stated 5” of ATB? Please advise. 

Response: To backfill with the stated 5” of ATB. 

 

9. TCP (2-5)-18 on Sheet 82 shows a proposed shadow vehicle to be present during the construction of 

Phase 0. Is a shadow vehicle necessary for the posted speed limit (35 mph)? 

Response: Shadow vehicle not required for project. Intent is to follow signing as best as possible. 

 

10. Sheet 156 Section VI Note 1 states that there is potential contamination from stations 102+70 to 

107+75. What type of contamination is thought to be in this area? Is it necessary to provide hazardous waste 

trained personnel for all scopes of excavation within this area (gas, signals, irrigation, electrical, storm, street, 

etc.)? If contaminated soils are encountered, will the City provide a trained individual in hazardous waste 

disposal for the contractor’s use? 

Response: The City has conducted an environmental assessment of a facility located in Houston Street adjacent 

to the project. The potential for hydrocarbon (fuel) contamination exists for the Commerce project; therefore, 

the City will have an environmental consultant conducting air monitoring and oversight to make sure workers 

are not exposed to vapors, when excavating or drilling.  If contaminated media (deemed by the Environmental 

Consultant) is encountered during the construction of the project, the City will have a licensed and certified 

environmental contractor excavating, removing, transporting and disposing of the impacted media.  The 

Environmental Contractor will work directly under the City’s/Consultant guidance in segregating the impacted 

and clean soils.  The Environmental Contractor will also work and coordinate any work in the affected area 

with the prime Contractor. 

 

11. When will SARA be completed with construction on Commerce Street?  

Response: Anticipated completion is October 2019. 

 

12. Regarding the traffic signal layout sheets starting on Sheet 286, there are multiple instances of callouts 

at the ends of runs such as “SHEET NO XXX” referencing the electrical service pedestals. Will the city 

provide these details? 

Response: Plans will be updated to specify location. 

 

13. The irrigation plans show multiple water taps to occur at Stations 103+79, 112+03, and 120+12. Who is 

responsible for the cost related to SAWS impact fees? 

Response: CoSA will be responsible for SAWS impact fees. Contractor will be responsible for coordinating 

process and apply for the service. 

 

14. Sheets 88-90 show the locations of CPS manholes and vaults. Is it the contractor’s responsibility to 

adjust these items or will CPS perform this work? If it is the contractor’s responsibility, please add a pay item 

in reference to this scope of work and please provide a detail sheet. 

Response: CPS Energy is responsible for CPS manhole and vault adjustments. No pay item will be added. 

 

15. Sheets 239 and 232C show conflicting details regarding the bench lighting. Conflicts are surrounding 

the number of LED strip lights and the method of mounting the lights with all appurtenances. Please advise on 

the City’s desired detail.  

a. In reference to the previous question, will the proposed C channel used for the LED attachment be raw 

steel or will it have a special coating? 

Response: Install per sheet 239. Installation was discussed with Manufacturer’s representative. 
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b. In reference to the previous question, it is of concern to the contractor that the proposed tack welds will 

damage the integrity of the power coating. Please advise.  

Response: Tack welds were used for benches on Frio Street project (same benches). Bench powder coat was 

not a concern or an issue. 

 

16. Regarding Division 9 (Anti-graffiti coating 09860) 2.3D, the specified anti-graffiti locations are too 

vague. “Full height of all exterior exposed vertical surfaces” Will the City provide a schedule of items that 

require this anti-graffiti coating as well as a related quantity? 

Response: Items that will require the application of approved anti- graffiti product are: 

Street Light Poles, Bollards, Bridge Railings, Recessed Bridge Rail Light Fixtures, Trash Containers, Litter 

Containers, Plant           

Containers, Recycle Containers, Benches, Bike Racks, Traffic Signal Poles and Control Boxes, Electrical 

Boxes and Panels, Bus  

Stop Structure Including All Framing, Supports, Tile and Underside of Roof, Bus Stop Leaning Rails, VIA Bus 

Stop Kiosk, and Light Towers. 

 

 

17. Regarding Division 9 (Exterior painting 09911), please provide specifics in reference to this item. It is 

believed that this item isn’t pertinent to the project. 

Response: Refers to Painting of Bus Stop, Lighting Towers, Bus Stop Leaning Rail, And any other components 

that the contractor receives from the manufacture unpainted and is detailed and described as painted. 

 

 

18. Regarding Division 9 (Elastomeric coating 09963), please provide specifics in reference to this item. It 

is believed that this item isn’t pertinent to the project. 

Response: This section of specs can be eliminated. 

 

 

19. Regarding Section 16050 (Basic materials and methods), please provide specifics in reference to this 

item. It is believed that this item isn’t pertinent to the project. 

Response: Section 16050 will be updated and provided. 

 

 

20. Regarding Section 16051 (Demolition work), please provide specifics in reference to this item. It is 

believed that this item isn’t pertinent to the project. 

Response: Section 16051 will be updated and provided. 

 

 

21. The governing specifications sheet from the final project manual lists various items as “XXX.X” and 

does not provide further information. Please provide the specifications in reference to these items for contractor 

compliance. 

Response: Amendment #2 updates these items. 

 

22. Regarding Note 4 on Sheet 222, how will the contractor be compensated for the cleaning of the existing 

paving and coloring of the mortar? 

Response: The contractor is directed to clean the existing Oklahoma Sandstone and mortar joints along the 

junction where paving stones are being replaced in Main Plaza. There is no coloring of the existing mortar. The 

cleaning is required so that mortar is correctly color matched to the existing mortar color, not matched to the 

color of dirty mortar.   We are requiring the contractor to only clean to a several paver distance along where the 

new and old materials meet. Work is consider incidental work to the Main Plaza paving.  
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23. The specification states that it presides, the bridge as detailed on sheet 232A section 4 specifically states 

a different mix. This directly conflicts with the previously mentioned specification. Please advise. 

Response: Please clarify your question. 

 

24. On sheet 99 117+84 to 118+58 which is the bridge, it shows no color or texture but the detail on sheet 

232 section 4 shows color but no texture. This information is conflicting, please advise. In addition to pay item 

307 which doesn’t indicate colored or stamped concrete. Please revise or add pay items. 

Response: Contractor will need to follow the Site Details 1.18 & 1.19 for specifications on the color and 

surface treatment. Item 307 does include color and surface treatment as per Site Details. Item 307 is not 

required elsewhere in the plans. 

 

25. In reference to the proposed stamped concrete, can the city provide a detail explicitly showing the 

desired stamped concrete design/pattern? Can the 0360 6004 & 0360 6051 pay items be revised to incorporate 

the determination of texture and color regarding the concrete pavement? 

Response: The colors selected for the textured concrete are from the specified manufactures standard color 

selection. The concrete overlay at the San Antonio River Bridge is not stamped it has a smooth trowel finish 

and is sandblasted to provide relief and texture. Rubber mats are to be placed during the sandblasting process to 

provide the vine and leaf shapes as detailed on the plans and in the details. See Sheets SL 1.15 and SL 1.16, 

also Detail Sheets Dt 1.08 and DT 1.19. Templates will be provided to the contractor to produce the templates. 

Description of stamped patterns and colors for cementitious overlay are detailed in the specifications, on the 

plans and in the details. 

 

26. Can the 0531 6004 (curb ramp) pay item be revised to incorporate the determination of texture and 

color regarding the concrete pavement? 

Response: Curb ramp color and finish as per Concrete Pavement Layouts sheets. Also see Amendment #2 

responses and updates. 

 

27. There is no designation for curbs to have an integral color. Is it the intent for the curbs to be standard? If 

not, please provide the curb mix and color in reference to this item and revise the pay item to include the 

incorporated color.  

Response: Response provided on Amendment #2. 

 

28. The proposed colored concrete requires a special curing compound. This will inadvertently affect the 

prefabricated pavement markings (668 6005) and will require additional surface preparation. Can a pay item be 

added to incorporate this scope of work? 

Response: A surface preparation bid item that can utilized for the pavement marking on the colored concrete 

will be added. 

 

29. Can the 503.1 (concrete driveways) pay item be revised to incorporate the determination of texture and 

color regarding the concrete pavement? 

Response: Response provided on Amendment #2. 

 

30. Will the contractor be allowed to ask clarification questions to the answers provided to the questions 

due 10/26/2018 at 4:00 PM? 

Response: Yes, Question period extended as per Amendment #3. 

 

31. Regarding Sheets 107-109, there are multiple instances of callouts referencing both the contractor and 

CPS to remove the existing light poles. Are all light poles to be removed/salvaged by CPS? 

Response: No, there are some poles (as identified) that will be removed by CPS Energy and some that are 

responsibility of the Contractor. Also, the luminaire, tenon adapter and cable back to power sources from Tri-
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Party “hockey puck” style lights mounted on traffic poles will be removed by CPS Energy. The mast arm itself 

will be responsibility of the Contractor. 

 

32. Per item 9003 Temporary Suspension of Work for Special Events from the final project manual, please 

add pay items 9003.1 Temporary Suspension of Work in Whole – per day and 9003.1 Temporary Suspension 

of Work in Part – per day. 

Response: Items will be added to Unit Pricing form. 

 

33. On sheet 219, is there an example that the City can provide to contractor in reference to the paver 

concrete flower that is already installed for the contractor’s review?  

a. In reference to the previous question, are the colored stones for flowers from an identified source? 

b. In reference to the previous question, can the City provide an approved list of vendors regarding the 

specified river gravel? 

Response: We can find no example in San Antonio for the contractor to review. We can provide several photos 

of finished work and one photo of work under construction. Note that in our details and in the illustrations 

provided that the stones are very flat and set vertically. 

 

a. Local sources for colored, polished pebbles would be: 

Keller Materials 

San Jacinto Stone 

 

b. Other recommended Sources 

Stoneyard – 978-742-9800 

Coverall Stone – 800-779-3234 

Cascade Stoneworks – 206-737-8364 

 

34. Pay Items – Will there be a revised pay items that match the prints (for example the quantities for 16” 

steel installation has 438’ and the prints have 78’)? Can we get some clarification on the gas pay items? 

Response: The pay items have been revised in the Gas-5 exhibit issued on Amendment #2. 

 

35. Will there be a complete street closure for the installation of the 16” steel main? 

Response: Contractor to follow TCP as per plan; if a Contractor deems complete street closure necessary, they 

will need to submit a revised proposed plan and it must be approved by CoSA Engineer. 

 

 

36. Will it be allowed to extend the project limits on either side of Laredo St. to be able install the 16” steel 

main underneath all the existing utilities? 

Response: Yes, coordination will have to be done with CoSA Inspectors. 

 

 

37. How will the 16” steel gas main be tied-in?  will CPS control the gas, or will there be a third party 

controlling the gas, and will there be a pay item for this operation? 

Response: TDW will be required to perform the 16” stopple operation. There is a pay item for TDW stopple 

operation. 

 

38. The quantities do not reflect how many services and what size they are. Also, will all the services be a 

tie-over at one foot inside the property line? Because there is no pay item to run the service to the meter. Can 

we get some clarification on the services? 

Response: The pay items have been revised in the Gas-5 exhibit issued on Amendment #2. 
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39. Will the gas installation have to follow the phasing? If so will CPS supply all the material for the 

temporary tie-ins? 

Response: Refer to Note 4 on the Gas Cover Sheet. CPS will provide all materials necessary for temporary tie-

ins. 

 

40. Can we get clarification on construction points 59, 101, 102? 

Response: These construction points have been corrected in the Gas-6 exhibit issued on Amendment #2. 

 

41. Will there be a profile of the 16” steel? 

Response: No profile will be provided. 

 

42. What will the pressure of the existing steel be at time of tie-in? 

Response: Pressure will not exceed 33 psig. 

 

43. There are no Flowable Fill or Temporary asphalt on the CPS pay items.  Will these be added to the pay 

items? 

Response: The pay items have been revised in the Gas-5 exhibit issued on Amendment #2. 

 

44. On sheets 5, 7, and 8, its calling for 60 LBS Mag Bare Bars.  Can we get clarification on these items? 

Response: CPS Corrosion Control will install anodes. CPS Corrosion Control will need to be contacted when it 

comes to this part of the project. Please reach out to Daniel Davila at 210-353-3431. 

 

45. The CPS pay items calls for 1 Cathodic Protection Test Lead Box.  The prints call for 4.  Please clarify. 

Response: The pay items have been revised to exclude the installation of cathodic protection test lead boxes. 

Installation of cathodic protection test lead boxes is to be included in the unit price of the pipe with all pertinent 

features. Please refer to Gas plans and specifications submitted on Amendment #2. 

 

46. Has the City determined that this project will be required to work sunrise to sundown Monday through 

Saturday? 

Response: Yes 

 

47. Will the City provide a resident inspector sunrise to sundown Monday through Saturday for the duration 

of the project? 

Response: Yes 

 

48. Will the City require joint bid utilities to provide inspections sunrise to sundown Monday through 

Saturday? 

Response: Yes, coordination with SAWS and CPS Energy will be required to schedule inspectors. 

 

49. Which contact requirement takes precedence, the contract time or the sunrise to sundown requirement? 

Response: Contract time takes precedence. 

 

50. Explain how the City will define “work” that must occur sunrise to sundown Monday through Saturday. 

Response: Work is defined as stated in the General Conditions Article I. General Conditions, I1.48 “Work” 

 

51 Barricade quantity is 24 months with job being 480 calendar days.  Please clarify 

Response: Unit Pricing form updated on Amendment #2. 

 

52 Portable changeable message sign bid item is 36 Ea.  Please clarify 

Response: Updated to days on Amendment #2 
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53 Is there a place for required field office? 

Response: Contractor’s responsibility to find a location and meet CoSA’s Field Office requirements. 

 

54 Is the curb colored according to the pavement color? 

Response: See responses on Amendment #2. 

 

55 Could bid items be added for the different color and finishes for the 10” concrete and 10” HES 

concrete? 

Response: No, Amendment #2 did break out the concrete color quantities by color in the Summary Sheet for 

Contractor’s Information. 

 

56 Bid item for curb ramps states ramps are  Ty 1 but some are Ty 2 and (SPL).  Please clarify how these 

will be paid for.  Also are the ramps colored according to concrete pavement layout sheets? 

Response: Plans and bid items will be updated for different types of curb ramps. Yes, use Concrete Pavement 

Layout sheets for color match. 

 

57 Are the driveways colored according to the concrete pavement layout sheets? 

Response: Yes. 

 

58 Do we keep driveways open in Segment 3  Phase 6? 

Response: Not required but coordination will have to occur with the business owner for them to utilize Market 

Street garage entrances. 

 

59 How is the work shown on Sheet DT 1.08 paid for? 

Response: Bid Item will be added to plans and Unit Pricing form 

 

60 Plans show symbol I on Site Layout drawings as Future interpretive sign (N.I.C) but have bid item for 

interpretive sign.  Please clarify. 

Response: Bid item eliminated on Amendment #2. 

 

61 Please define scope of work that needs to be completed before contractor can start new segment? 

Response: All work that needs to be complete prior to moving to the next segment shall include utility 

installation (lighting, irrigation, gas, ITSD, water & sewer, signals) sidewalk, street, striping and signing.   

 

62 Completion time of 480 days is insufficient, does phase 0 count in our contract time? 

Response: Yes 

 

63 Is there any restrictions on working hours due to sound, pedestrian or traffic flow? 

Response: Yes, there is a noise ordinance that’s effective between 10:00 PM and 6:00 AM.  Work can typically 

be allowed in the CBD until 10:00 PM unless the work is immediately next to a hotel, hospital, or residences.   

Also, special events are scheduled throughout the year…Fiesta, Rock n Roll marathon, etc. and work may be 

minimized or stopped during these times due to high pedestrian/vehicle traffic.   

Pay Items for “Temporary Suspension of Work for Special Events, in Whole or in Part will be added to this 

contract.     

 

64       Item 6001 6001 Portable Changeable Message Sign has a quantity of 36 EA.  Is it CoSA intent to have 

contractor provide 36 EA? 

Response: Incorrect, item quantity has been updated on Amendment #2; 36 days. 
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65       Item XXX.X Off Duty Police Officer has a quantity of 240 HR.  Per TXDOT Specification 502 Law 

Enforcement Officers are to be paid by Contractor Force Account.  Will this be handle as Force Account and 

the Item Removed? 

Response: No, please provide a bid per hour of Off Duty Police Officer and include in the Unit Pricing Form. 

 

66       Conflicting notes on who retains ownership of the existing road pavers.  Please advise if contractor is to 

dispose of pavers, or CoSA wants to retain per Note 4 of TCP Plan Sheet 25. 

Response: Note 6 on “Removal Layouts” is correct. Note 5 on TCP Plan sheet 25 will be updated. 

 

67 Sheet 16 Note J indicates “all work” to be completed before moving on to the next segment. Please 

confirm what is inclusive to the term “all work” per the City’s definition. (i.e. landscaping, hardscaping, 

electrical, irrigation, traffic signals, etc.)  

a. In reference to the previous question, if traffic signals are to be included in the definition of “all work”, 

the intersection of Flores will be in conflict with this note. Half of the intersection is denoted to be construction 

in one segment and the other half is denoted in a separate section. We cannot complete the intersection without 

installing the signals at once and we cannot complete the signals without violating this clause. Please advise. 

Response: See answer to Q61 
 

68 For items 6025 6001 (Radar presence detection device - RPDD) and 6057 6001 (Radar advance 

detection device), can you please add a pay item along with the associated quantity for the needed radar cable? 

Response: These cables are accounted for under the 692.1 (Communication cable 22 AW/6 pair) pay item 

69 What is the intended use for the 692.1 (Communication cable 22 AW/6 pair) pay item? It is not clearly 

delineated in the writing diagram. 

Response: This item is for the RADD and RPDD cables. 

70 With 5 new controllers being installed, what is the intended use for the 10 controller foundations 

denoted by pay items 655.1 (Type 332 controller foundation) and 655.2 (controller pedestal post)? 

Response: Pay item 655.2 will be revised to show 1 controller pedestals as all the others will be joined with the 

lighting sheet’s in a special joint detail that can be found on the lighting sheets plans.    Pay item 655.1 is good. 

71       We would like to request an extension to the due date for the RFCSP TCI092428RR.  Amendment #2 

will result in a considerable amount of changes to the pricing.  We have still not received a revised bid item 

form with the latest quantities.  These quantities need to be analyzed and incorporated into the bid packages for 

the subcontract community.  In addition we received 75 revised drawings with no clouding of any changes.  It 

will take time for GC to go through drawings and identify changes. Please consider extending due date. 

Response: Amendment #3 extension provided. 

72       There are conflicting notes on the Scrim,  Is CoSA still providing the Scrim for contractor installation? 

Response: No, Scrim is Subsidiary to Construction Perimeter Fence. Contractor is responsible for providing 

Scrim. 

73       CoSA Response to previously answered question 13.  “The locations of streetcar foundations cannot be 

identified with any certainty therefore the intent is to utilize Item 101 Prepping ROW for any encountered 

Streetcar Tracks”. Either a quantity of Street Car encountered needs to be identified or this item needs to be 

handled as a Force Account.  The unit for Prep ROW is LS,  Is it CoSA intent to have the contractors price 

1900’ of Street Car Removal in Prep ROW? 
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Response: No, Amendment will update Removal Layout notes on the sheet. If Street Car Removal is required it 

will be paid for under Item 103.4 Remove Misc Concrete. Unit Pricing Form and Summary Sheet will also be 

updated. 

74       Please provide a specification for the colored asphalt to be installed over the San Antonio River Bridge.   

Response: Specification will be provided. 

75       CoSA response to question 17. “There are several bid items that are not included in the CoSA Form 6 

Unit Pricing Form.  Please clarify what type of agreement the Contractor will enter into with CoSA, Unit Price 

Contract or Lump Sum Contract?  If unit price will this form be revised or will items be addressed through 

change order? Response: Unit Bid Pricing form to be updated.” The Question referred to the Contract not the 

pricing form.  Please clarify that the General Contractor will enter into a Unit Price Contract with CoSA and 

not a Lump Sum Contract? 

Response: Correct; contract will be a Unit Price Contract. 

76. Can you please clarify what exactly must be turned in with the submission? There are multiple 

discrepancies throughout the bid documents regarding this issue? 

Response: Please contact CoSA Contract Administrator for any additional clarifications.  

A total of eight (8) Statement of Qualifications will need to be submitted. Of the eight, one will need to be an 

original unbound SOQ. The remaining seven SOQs will be the reprinted bound copies of the SOQ. 

In a separate envelope place one copy, with original signatures, of the forms listed: 

 

Lastly, the entire submittal (SOQ and Forms Packet) need to be submitted as an Adobe pdf file on a USB 

thumb drive. 

 

 

No other items, dates, or deadlines for this RFCSP are changed. 

 
 

END OF AMENDMENT 4 


